
City of Dunwoody, GA 
Proposal for Audit Services 
RFP No. 15-10 Addendum 1 
July 28, 2015 
 

1. What are the typical hours spent on the engagement in years past? – We do not.  You can 
view the current contractor’s proposal, but we cannot vouch for the accuracy of 
that estimate. 

2. What is the actual amount paid in last two years for services mentioned in RFP? – 
12/31/2014=$24,000.00, 12/31/2013=$26,188.00  

3. What is the amount included in 2016 for these services included in the RFP? – The 2016 
budget has not been prepared or approved. 

4. What is the typical duration of both interim work and fieldwork and how many auditors are 
on site during this time? – Interim work has not occurred the past several years, but we would 
request it take place in early December.  Regular fieldwork takes place in early February and 
usually lasts around 8 days on-site with 2-3 auditors present most days.   

5. Will supporting workpapers and schedules be available in an electronic format? – Workpapers 
are property of the auditor, however you can obtain all our schedules and supporting 
documents upon request.   

6. Will auditors have “read only” access to the Dunwoody’s accounting software? – That can 
most likely be arranged if needed.   

7. Are the financial records for the component unit also maintained on the same Software? - Yes 
8. Would we be able to come in and perform walk-through procedures during the prior to the 

audit? - Yes 
9. Do you anticipate the need for an A-133 audit? – Yes.  Please quote for the regular audit and 

the single audit separately. 
10. Have there been any instances of noncompliance with grant agreements? – No  
11. Have there been any instances of fraud related to financial reporting or misappropriation of 

assets? – No  
12. When was the last inventory of fixed assets performed? – We maintain a perpetual inventory 

of the fixed assets, adding and deleting as needed.   
13. Is any portion of the accounting function decentralized? – Some grant functions are 

decentralized, but substantially all accounting is centralized 
14. Please expand on the Dunwoody’s pension plan and OPEB – We have no pensions or OPEB.  

Retirement plans are defined contribution only.   
a. Are timely reports received from the actuary? – Not applicable 
b. Are there any concerns in obtaining necessary information in order to adopt GASB 68? – Not 

applicable 
15. What are some of the best qualities of the current audit firm?  - Competent staff and low 

costs; very responsive throughout the year  
16. What is something you see could be better in the audit process? – Better attention to our 

timelines and need to get reports out sooner.  Not asking the same questions repeatedly.  
Getting all questions to us sooner rather than coming to us with “final” questions several 
times.   

17. Who will be the final decision makers? – Council approves the audit firm. 
18. What is the most important factor that will play into the City’s choice for its audit firm? – 

Competence of the audit firm 
19. What are ways we can provide better client service experience than what was provided by the 

previous firm. 
20. What is the City looking for in a relationship with the auditor? What are some of the best 

qualities of the current audit firm?  What is something you see could be better in the audit 
process. 

21. Will an electronic financial statement template be available for preparing draft and final 
financial statements? – Yes  



22. What are the typical hours spent on the engagement in years past?  - You can view the 
current contractor’s proposal, but we cannot vouch for the accuracy of that 
estimate. 

23. What is the actual amount paid in last two years for services mentioned in RFP? – See 

answer to number 2.  

24. What is the budget in 2015 for these services included in the RFP? – See the current 

contract. 

25.  What is the typical duration of both interim work and fieldwork and how many auditors are 
on site during this time? 

26.  Can you provide the prior 2 years of management letters issued with the audit? – Yes  

27. Does the City have an estimated on the number of man hours to perform the audit ? 
– We do not.  You can view the current contractor’s proposal, but we cannot vouch 
for the accuracy of that estimate. 

28. What was the prior audit fees for the previous 2 years ? – See answer to number 2. 
29. Is the prior year’s Management Letter available for review? – Yes  
30. Does the City  currently have any Federal Grants requiring A‐133 work? – Yes, 

assume a single audit for all years of the contract, but price separately (audit + 
single audit) 

31. Can we assume that the City  will pull requested “sample “ documentation during 
field work testing phase in a timely manner? – Absolutely  

32. Is there a page, font size, or font type limitation on the proposals (technical or cost)? 
– No, but we ask that all responses stay on topic and consider the value of the 
review team’s time.   

33. Was the request for proposals a result of the City’s policy to require bids at certain 
intervals or for other reasons? – City policy; current contract is expiring 

34. Does the City have a policy regarding the rotation of audit firms and if not does the 
City expect its previous audit firm to propose? – City does not require rotation and 
it’s reasonable to assume the incumbent will rebid.   

 

35. How long has the prior auditor served as the City auditor and when was the last RFP 
for audit services issued? – Current contract is three years old.  Incumbent has been 
the auditor since the 2009 statements.   

 

36. The RFP states that the City will engage a creative designer to prepare the CAFR. Are 
the financial statements that are submitted to the designer prepared by 
management or the auditor? – Auditor; though staff works closely with the auditor 
for review and edits as needed. 

 

37. Does the Finance Department maintain the trial balance for the Dunwoody 
Convention and Visitors’ Bureau? – Yes.  If not please provide details of who 
maintains and how information is obtained. 

 



38. Have there been any organizational changes to personnel or assignments of duties 
in the finance department in the past year? – No. 

 

39. Has management of the City of Dunwoody or the Dunwoody Convention and 
Visitors’ Bureau became aware of any matters of fraud or noncompliance with laws 
or regulations that were not disclosed in previous audits. – No.  

 

40. Can you provide a listing of any journal entries that were proposed by the auditors 
in the 2014 audit? – Yes, attached. 

 

41. What were the base audit fees for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012? Were there any 
additional fees for change orders or for other services by the audit firm? – No 
change orders.  See the current contract.   
 







































Revenues:

    Property taxes $ 5,975,000        $ 5,975,000      $ 6,823,216 $ 848,216          

    Sales taxes 4,000,000        -                    -                     -                      

    Franchise taxes 3,250,000        3,250,000      3,880,550 630,550          

    Alcohol excise taxes 560,000          560,000         616,358 56,358            

    Business taxes 2,705,000        2,705,000      2,702,392 (2,608)             

    Insurance taxes 2,350,000        2,350,000      2,495,238 145,238          

    Licenses and permits 875,000          1,206,000      1,791,291 585,291          

    Intergovernmental -                      -                    3,000 3,000              

    Charges for services 408,000          408,000         508,144          100,144          

    Fines and forfeitures 1,510,000        1,510,000      1,461,499       (48,501)           

    Contributions 5,000              50,000           58,869            8,869              

    Interest earned 10,000            10,000           4,670              (5,330)             

    Miscellaneous 213,000          213,000         301,104          88,104            

                 Total revenues 21,861,000      18,237,000    20,646,331     2,409,331        

Expenditures:

  Current:

    General government:

        Mayor and council 225,544          225,544         206,212          19,332            

        City manager 350,908          363,908         240,885          123,023          

        City clerk 170,742          170,742         155,014          15,728            

        Finance 3,510,141        3,528,950      3,278,154       250,796          

        Law 385,000          385,000         351,633          33,367            

        Contingency 400,000 400,000 -                 400,000          

            Total general government 5,042,335        5,074,144      4,231,898       842,246          

    Judicial 504,503 530,753 450,868 79,885            

    Public safety 6,286,851 6,372,851 5,777,749 595,102          

    Public works 1,943,796 2,230,646 2,004,004 226,642          

    Recreation 1,078,000        1,186,267 1,095,298 90,969            

    Community development 2,104,220 2,464,470 2,403,897 60,573            

                Total expenditures 16,959,705      17,859,131    15,963,714     1,895,417        

                Excess of revenues over expenditures 4,901,295        377,869         4,682,617       4,304,748        

Continued

Original Final Actual

Variance With

Final Budget

CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES  
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BASIS)  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Budget
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Other financing sources (uses):

    Proceeds from the sale of property $ 1,150,000        $ 1,150,000      $ 950,000          $ (200,000)         

    Transfers in 1,358,000        1,358,000      1,570,021       212,021          

    Transfers out (7,784,294)      (3,919,669)     (3,645,267)      274,402          

                Total other financing sources (uses) (5,276,294)      (1,411,669)     (1,125,246)      286,423          

                Net change in fund balance (374,999)         (1,033,800)     3,557,371       4,591,171        

Fund balance, beginning of year, restated 6,433,856        6,433,856      6,433,856 -                  

Fund balance, end of year $ 6,058,857        $ 5,400,056      $ 9,991,227       $ 4,591,171        

GENERAL FUND

Budget Variance With

Original Final Actual Final Budget

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BASIS)

CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA
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CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA

GRANTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BASIS) 

Original Final Actual

Revenues:

    Intergovernmental $ 1,879,500        $ 1,879,500        $ 1,401,304 $ (478,196)          
           Total revenues 1,879,500        1,879,500        1,401,304        (478,196)          

Expenditures:

    Current:
      Public safety 17,000             17,000             8,676 8,324               
      Public works 1,912,500        1,762,500        2,090,274 (327,774)          
      Recreation 100,000           100,000           100,000           -                       
           Total expenditures 2,029,500        1,879,500        2,198,950        (319,450)          

           Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (150,000)          -                       (797,646)          (797,646)          

Other financing sources:

    Transfers in 150,000           -                       -                       -                       
           Total other financing sources 150,000           -                       -                       -                       

          Net change in fund balances -                       -                       (797,646)          (797,646)          

Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year (86,555)            (86,555)            (86,555)            -                       

Fund balances (deficit), end of year $ (86,555)            $ (86,555)            $ (884,201)          $ (797,646)          

Final Budget

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Budget Variance With
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CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA

HOST FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BASIS)

Original Final Actual

Revenues:

    Sales taxes $ 6,596,344        $ 6,596,344        $ 6,596,344 $ -                       
    Interest -                       -                       3,178 3,178               

Total revenues 6,596,344        6,596,344        6,599,522        3,178               

Excess of revenues over expenditures 6,596,344        6,596,344        6,599,522        3,178               

Other financing uses:

    Transfers out (6,625,000)      (6,625,000)      (6,625,000)      -                       
Total other financing uses (6,625,000)      (6,625,000)      (6,625,000)      -                       

Net change in fund balances (28,656)           (28,656)           (25,478)           3,178               

Fund balances, beginning of year, restated 5,028,121        5,028,121        5,028,121 -                       

Fund balances, end of year $ 4,999,465        $ 4,999,465        $ 5,002,643        $ 3,178               

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Budget Variance With

Final Budget
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

 
Honorable Mayor and Members 
     of City Council 

City of Dunwoody, Georgia 

 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dunwoody, Georgia (the “City”) as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 13, 2015. 

 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control 

over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 

misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 

timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 

that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 

with governance.  
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

 

Compliance and Other Matters 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 

the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 

those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 

reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

 
Purpose of this Report 

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 

and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 

control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 

this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 
Atlanta, Georgia 

May 13, 2015 



 

 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 

FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; 
AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133  
 
 
 

Honorable Mayor and Members 
     of City Council 

City of Dunwoody, Georgia 

 

 Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  

We have audited the City of Dunwoody, Georgia’s (the “City”) compliance with the types of compliance 

requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 

material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2014.  The City’s 

major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule 

of findings and questioned costs. 

 Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 

applicable to its federal programs.  

 Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs based on 

our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 

the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 

Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 

could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a 

test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 

as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 

program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance. 

 Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 

above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 

December 31, 2014.  

 Report on Internal Control Over Compliance  

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 

compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit 

of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 

could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 

federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-

133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance. 

 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 

does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 

prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 

timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 

deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 

noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected 

and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 

federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 

enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 

that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 

compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified a deficiency in internal control 

over compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2014-

001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 
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The City’s response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is described in the 

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-

133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 

discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City 

as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 

collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements.  We issued our report thereon dated June 10, 2014, 

which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of 

forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The 

accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 

required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is 

the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 

other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 

comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 

prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 

procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 

opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 

basic financial statements as a whole. 

 

 
 
 

Atlanta, Georgia 

May 13, 2015 

    



CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Federal Agency or Pass-
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA through Grantor Total

Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 GA0447100 $ 11,370

Bullet Proof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 N/A 520

Total U.S. Department of Justice 11,890

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed through Georgia Department of Transportation

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PI#0010666; PI#0010853 784,286
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PI#0012876 7,254
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PI#0012615 16,420
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PI#0009028 500,000
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PI#0010651 340,000
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PI#0012875 117,029

Passed through Georgia Department of Natural Resources
Recreational Trails Program 20.219 NRT-11(10) 100,000

Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 1,864,989

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 1,864,989

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT OFFICE OF THE
 NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY

High Intesity Drug Trafficking Areas Program 95.001 G10GA0002A 4,656
Total Executive Office of the President 4,656

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,881,535

See note to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA 
 

NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

 
 

 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of 

Dunwoody, Georgia and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is 

presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and 

Non-Profit Organizations.”  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented 

in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements. 

 

Subrecipient Disbursements  

 

During fiscal year 2014, disbursements were made to subrecipients of the following grant program: 

 
Program CFDA Number Subrecipient

Highway Planning and Construction Grant 20.205 DeKalb PCID $ 807,960  
Amount
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CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

 
 

 

SECTION I 

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued:    Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weaknesses identified?              yes      X   no 
 
Significant deficiencies identified not considered 

  to be material weaknesses?              yes      X   none reported 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?              yes      X   no 
 
Federal Awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 

Material weaknesses identified?            yes      X   no 
 
Significant deficiencies identified not considered 

  to be material weaknesses?      X    yes   ____ no 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 

  major programs   Unmodified 

 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to 

  be reported in accordance with OMB Circular 

  A-133, Section 510(a)?            yes      X   no 
 

Identification of major program: 
 
 CFDA Number    Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

 20.205 & 20.219  Highway Planning and Construction  

     Cluster 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 

Type A and Type B programs:    $300,000 

 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?              yes      X   no 
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CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

 
 

 
SECTION II 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

 

None noted 
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CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

 
 

 
SECTION III 

FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

2014-001    Reporting 

 

Program: U.S. Department of Transportation (CFDA No. 20.205) 

CFDA Program Title: Highway Planning and Construction Program 

Passed through: Georgia Department of Natural Resources 

 
Criteria:  The City is required to submit quarterly performance reports to the State.  These reports 
summarize the activity of the work accomplished, future work to be performed and anticipated 
completion dates for each project.   
 
Condition:  The City’s controls were not sufficient to provide documentation of the reports which were 
submitted to the State in accordance with the grant agreements.   
 
Context/Cause:  Internal controls were not sufficient to maintain supporting copies of the quarterly 
progress reports.   
 
Effects:  As a result of the City not being able to provide the documentation evidence, the controls 
related to the completion, review, and submission of the reports could not be tested.  However, the City 
did have a letter from the Georgia Department of Natural Resources which stated the City had 
complied with all grant requirements for the program.   
 
Questioned Costs:  None noted based on the letter from the grantor. 
 
Recommendation:  We recommend the City implement internal controls sufficient to allow for the 
preparation, timely submission, and retention of the monthly and annual performance reports in 
accordance with the grant agreements. 
 
Auditee’s response:  We will implement internal controls sufficient to ensure copies are retained on 
future performance reports. 
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CITY OF DUNWOODY, GEORGIA 
 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 

 
 

 
 
None noted 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members 
  of the City Council of the  
  City of Dunwoody, Georgia 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Dunwoody, 
Georgia as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control.  
 
However, during our audit we became aware of deficiencies in internal control other than 
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses, as well as matters that are opportunities for 
strengthening internal controls and improving operating efficiency.  This letter includes 
comments and suggestions with respect to those matters.  A separate report dated May 13, 2015, 
contains our communication of significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the City’s 
internal control.  This letter does not affect our report dated May 13, 2015 on the financial 
statements of the City of Dunwoody, Georgia. 
 
The following items are offered as constructive suggestions to be considered part of the ongoing 
process of modifying and improving the City’s practices and procedures. 
   

1. During our testing of the procurement process related to federal projects, we 
noted the City was including a clause in the contracts for the covered 
transactions with vendors of federally funded projects. However, we noted the 
City was not checking the vendors awarded the contracts against the Excluded 
Parties Listing on the System for Award Management (SAM) website.  We 
recommend the Board also search the excluded parties listing for the vendors 
to ensure they are not suspended or debarred.  Documentation related to these 
additional searches should be printed and retained in the contract file to 
strengthen controls over the procurement process and reduce the risk of 
contracting with a suspended or debarred party. 
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2. During our testing of the Highway Planning and Construction grants, we 
identified two (2) instances out of the eight (8) reimbursements requests in 
which the City requested reimbursement from the grantor for 100% of the 
period’s expenditures.  However, according to the grant agreements, grant 
funding was awarded for only 80% of expenditures.  While the City ultimately 
identified the errors and made the necessary corrections on future reports; 
controls were not sufficient to catch the errors in a timely manner.  We 
recommend all reimbursement requests be submitted to the finance 
department for their review and approval, prior to submission to the grantor. 

3. During the current year, an audit adjustment for approximately $40,000 was 
made to remove a retainage payable balance in the Capital Projects Fund.  The 
balance was carried forward from the prior year; however, during the current 
year the disbursement was expended instead of reducing the liability. We 
recommend Finance personnel reconcile and review all liabilities at year-end 
to ensure supporting documentation exists for account balances.   

 
We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement.  We have 
already discussed these comments and suggestions with various City personnel, and we will be 
pleased to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of 
these matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. 
 
This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Dunwoody, Georgia, and its management and other officials and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.   
 
We appreciate serving the City of Dunwoody, Georgia and would be happy to assist you in 
addressing and implementing any of the suggestions in this letter. 

 
 

Atlanta, Georgia 
May 13, 2015 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members 
  of the City Council of the  
  City of Dunwoody, Georgia 
 
This letter includes comments and suggestions with respect to matters that came to our attention 
in connection with our audit of the basic financial statements of the City of Dunwoody, Georgia 
for the year ended December 31, 2013.  We have also communicated to management other 
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined by Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Please refer to the communications noted in the Report On Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated June 10, 2014. 

The following items are offered as constructive suggestions to be considered part of the ongoing 
process of modifying and improving the County's practices and procedures. 

During our testing of the City’s accrued revenues, we noted the December franchise tax 
revenue was not properly accrued as of December 31, 2013.  The City was understating 
revenues and the related receivables by approximately $84,000 in the General Fund.  We 
recommend the City carefully review their revenue collections during the year-end close 
out procedures to ensure all monthly remittances have been collected or accrued as of 
December 31. 

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Dunwoody, Georgia, and its management and other officials and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.   

We appreciate serving the City of Dunwoody, Georgia and would be happy to assist you in 
addressing and implementing any of the suggestions in this letter. 

 
 

Atlanta, Georgia 
June 10, 2014 
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